
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
THIRTY -SECOND SESSION 

Of!iciol Records * 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 28th MEETING 

SECOND COMMITTEE 
28th meeting 

held on 
Wednesday, 26 October 1977 

at 10.30 a.m. 
New York 

Chairman: Mr. JANKOWITSCH (Austria) 

CONTENTS 

AGENDA ITEM 59: UNITED NATIONS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATI ON (continued) 

(a ) REPORT OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD (continued) 

(b) REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (continued) 

• This record is subject to correction. Conections should be incorporated in a copy of 
the record and should be sent within one week of the date of publication to the Chief, 
Official Records Editing Section, room A-Jsso. 

Corrections will be issued shortly after the end of the session, in a separate fascicle for 
each Committee . 

77-57445 

Distr. GENERAL 
A/C.2/32/SR.28 
31 Octobe~ 1917 

ORiniNAL: ENGLISH 

/ ... 



A/C.2/32/SR.28 
English 
Pac;e 2 

The meeting was called to order at 10.45 a.fl. 

AGEimA ITE1•1 59: UNITED NATIONS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION (continued) 
(A/32/3, A/32/61, A/32/182, A/32/232) 

(a) l\EPORT OF THE IImUSTRIAL DEVELOPNENT BOARD (continued) (A/32/16) 

(b) REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (continued) (A/32/118) 

1. i·lr. DELIVAL\fiS (Greece) :-ecalled that four years previously his delegation had 
stressed that UNIDO activiti~s should not only promote the progress of industry 
but should also secure marke·~s for the developing countries' manufactured products. 
Industrialization was not an end in itself but a way of improving living conditions, 
particularly those of the ini1abitants of the less developed countries. In that 
connexion, there had been no satisfactory developments since that time. 

2. His delegation "i·relcomed the reorganization of the UJIJIDO secretariat, which had 
rationalized its operation. The reorganization had taken place at the most 
appropriate time, vrhen it had been impossible to increase mnDO resources' mainly 
because of the financial difficulties of the United Nations Development Programme. 
However, the lack of resourcE~s had resulted in more intensive work by the available 
staff and had obliged UNIDO t.o concentrate on the most important projects. 

3. Ul'!IDO must avoid any "iTaEtage of resources, even if that delayed the 
implenentation of certain me~:.sures. For that reason, the control of expenses was 
required, but it had to be c~:rried out quickly and in good faith. The Greek 
delegation agreed with the Ei!ecutive Director that the quality of the vork done by 
the secretariat had been improved as a result of bringing under one roof the 
technological and economic ur:its and also the units concerned "i·rith the recruitment 
of project personnel, procurement of equipment and contractual services, and 
as a result of the creation cf a separate section for industrial training. 

4. In addition, the special measures taken by the Executive Director to enable 
DrUDO to intensify its operational activities (A/32/118, para. 9) showed that the 
Organization was adopting a m:Jre rational approach to problems lvhich helped to avoid 
waste both in the countries concerned and in the institutions concerned with 
financing, counselling and suQervising. 

5. ~lis delegation ivas in full agreement 1vith the preference given to short-term 
projects. It also favoured t1e establishment in developing countries of industries 
for the local processing of r:J.w materials, provided that such processing was not 
too expensive, did not harm t· . .1e environment and was not too slOiv. It wondered, 
however, uhether it -vras approJriate for UNIDO to recommend the development of iron 
and steel industry in every d·=veloping country, lvhen the world production capacity 
in that sector '\Tas already tO<) high. There were other areas in which the addition 
of plants would be welcome, b1)th for the country concerned and for the \•rorld economy. 

I .•• 



A/C.2/32/SR.2G 
~nc;lish 
Page 3 

(Mr. Delivanis, Greece) 

6. ;11be Greel~: delegation uelcomed the special attention paid by UITIDO to 
land-locked and island countries, and to the strengtheninc; of regional 
collaboration amonc; developing countries. The developing countries should be 
encourac;ed to follow the example of other countries in the same group, provided 
that there were certain similarities bet1-reen the countries 1 economic and social 
situation, population density and climate; that uas perhaps not true in the case 
of India and the Andean countries - the example of collaboration mentioned by the 
l~xecutive Director. 

7. It was right that UNIDO should use consultants and services outside the 
United Nations system, as Hell as universities and research institutes in those 
developinc; countries where neF industries were planned. That practice >vas 
beneficial both to UNIDO and to the institutions concerned. 

8. In collaboration vith UNCTAD, UNIDO should channel orders for manufactures 
exclusively to developing countries whose per capita income did not exceed 
$US 1,500. Those manufactures vould be paid for 1-rith part of the foreign aid 
placed at the disposal of every less developed country. They 1muld then be sold 
at lm; prices to those in need and the proceeds should be use<.l for supplementary 
public investments in the countries concerned. 

9. In conclusion, his delegation stressed that UNIDO -vrould be in an even better 
position to perform its functions Fhen it was given increased financial support. 
Greece, for its part, had made a contribution of ~!JUS 9, 000 to UN IDO in 1977 and 
planned to contribute $10,000 in 1978. 

10. Hr. S~;IALL (Canada) said that, because of its relatively recent experience ln 
industrialization and its present efforts to alleviate regional disparities 
domestically, Canada understood the importance and the difficulties of industrial 
developnent. In that context, it had placed particular emphasis on the 
developiLlent of the capacity to transform industrial raw materials into 
semi-processed and processed goods. It therefore appreciated the priority which 
developing countries that were producers of rau n1aterials were attachine; to the 
development of an upc;radine; capacity for the more effective use of their manpmv-er 
and other resources and the stabilization of their export revenues. In that 
connexion, Canada was committed to assisting international and individual 
industrialization efforts by the developing countries in order to improve their 
terms of trade and thus reduce disparities in income betHeen States. 

11. The United Nations Conference on Science and Technology for Development and 
the draftinc; of an international code of conduct for the transfer of technology 
vrould promote industrialization. His delegation believed that UNIDO should play a 
key role Hithin the United Nations system in the promotion of industrial 
development and it Has glad to note that, since its Second General Conference, 
UIHDO had become increasingly active. 

12. Canada had been takinc; part in the sectoral consultations organized by UNIDO 
and had had the privilege of hosting a UHIDO investment promotion meeting fer the 
Hood-processinc; industries of developing countries. Although the efforts of the 

I ... 



A/C.~~/32/811.28 
English 
Page 4 

(lir. Small, Canada) 

Canadian International Devel:::>pment Ac;ency related principally to agriculture, the 
Agency uas considering an in::lustrial co-operation programme in i·rhich it would -vrork 
closely with UNIDO. 

13. Canada was taking an active part in the work of 
committee drafting of a new ~onstitution for UNIDO. 
be made in the coming round Jf negotiations and that 
attract the unqualified suppJrt of all l,1eniber States. 

the intergovernmental 
It hoped that progress would 
the new constitution -vrould 

14. Mr. lvlUTATI (Zaire) i-relc)med the efforts made by UIHDO since the 
thirty-first session of the l}eneral Assembly. It was to be hoped that the member 
Governments of Ul'JIDO 1-rould e:nulate that positive action, Hith the aim of 
accelerating the introductio:1 in the industrial sector of the ne1-r international 
economic order. If UNIDO wa3 to live up to the hopes of the 1-rorld community, it 
must be given adequate finan·~ing and a new organic structure which would endoi! it 
with the necessary autonomy and flexibility. It would then be able to perforn its 
ne-vr role o-r promoting effect_ ve industrialization in vrhich the developing countrieP 
i·rould be able to process the:.r raw materials and participate equitably in the 
industrialization of the vor:~d. That global object1 ve had l)een reaffirmed by the 
developinc; countries at numeJ·ous international gatherings and in particular in 
General Assembly resolution :5362 (S-VII). 

15. l\. study of the progress made in the implementation of the Lima Declaration and 
Plan of Action and of the dec~isions and recommendations on industrial development 
adopted by the General Assem1Jly at its seventh special session indicated that a 
huge amount of work had been done in the UNIDO secretariat, despite the shortage of 
financial and human resource~:. It could be seen from the report of the Industrial 
Development Board on the 1vorl: of its eleventh session (A/32/16) that in 1976 
technical assistance had increased only in monetary terms and not in real terms, 
but that it had shown a qualitative and quantitative improvement, that co-operation 
agreements had been conclude(. betvreen UNIDC and other United lfations bodies, that 
an Advisory Committee on Co-c•rdination in the Field of Industrial Development had 
been established. and that a unit to evaluate efforts on behalf of the least 
developed countries had been set up >vithin the Division of Policy Co-ordination. 

16. His delegation agreed tl.at it 1-ras necessary to reorganize the secretariat of 
UliTIDO in order to separate tle functions of research, implementation and proe;ramme 
formulation. UNIDO should bE able to benefit from outside experience and to make 
the best use of its own finarcial and intellectual resom·ces. The Zairian 
delegation had welcomed the n.eeting of eminent persons convened by UJIJIDO in 1976 to 
lay the foundations for the joint study lvhich UNIDO 1-1as to conduct in accordance 
with the decisions of the Second General Conference. It also lvelcomed the proposal 
for the establishment of an industrial and technological information bank, as well 
as the contents of the Executive Director's report on the strengthening of 
operat;ional activities (A/32/118). 

17. At the c;overnment level, there was a re[_l;rettable lack of definite commitments 
ree;arding action recommended by the General Assembly, in particular in its 
resolution 3362 (S-VII). For example, the UNIDO secretariat had received from 
Governments and international organizations only a limited number of communicationc 
concerning the measures taken to implement the Lima Declaration and Plan of Action -



A/C.2/32/SR.28 
:Cnc;lish 
Pac;e 5 

(i,ir. ''Iuta,ti, Zaire) 

communications I<Thich vere to enable UHIDO to evaluate the results of the efforts 
to est,ablish a new economic order. In addition, the redeployment of industries 
from the developed to the developing countries 1-ras encountering resistance of a 
social and legal nature, apparently connected with the excessively liberal 
options of certain regimes and vrith the social and political consequences which 
mic;ht allegedly result from accelerated redeployment of certain industrial 
activities. The reservations voiced about the proposed studies to identify entire 
industrial sectors to be subjected to accelerated redeployElent l·rere revealing in 
that connexion (A/32/16, para. 170). 

18. 'I'he lacl: of commitment among Governments vas evident in the negotiations on 
the nev constitution for UNIDO. The Committee to Drmr Up a Constitution for UNIDO 
as a Specialized Af!.,ency had held five sessions vrithout reaching agreement on the 
text to be submitted to a conference of plenipotentiaries. Developed and 
developing members of the Committee were divided by wide differences of opinion 
concerninc;, first, the preamble, and the objectives and functions of the 
Organization; secondly, the definition of the budget, the size and composition of 
orc;ans, and decision-mal~:ing procedures; and, thirdly, the question of amendments 
to the constitution and the settle1;1ent of disputes. Those uere substantive 
questions -vrhich had al1·mys been a subject of disac;reement betveen developed and 
developing countries, and the Governments concerned would therefore have to 
demonstrate great political willingness to overcome those diff2rences. For 
under-developed countries such as Zaire, however, the reformine; of UNIDO was part of 
the effort to establish a neH international economic order and vas linked with the 
need for full representation of the developing countries Hithin the new UNIDO. For 
that reason, the purpose of the resistance he had mentioned seemed to be the 
naintenance "by the industrialized countries of the status quo, in other VTords, of 
the old economic order. 

19. \lith rec;ard to the forthcominc; Pledginf!., Conference for the United Nations 
Industrial Development Fund, he pointed out that the desirable funding level had 
been set at $US 50 million. It -vras to be hoped that !1ember States 1vould show 
goodvill so that that Fund would no lon[;er be a project, but a reality. 

20. His delegation Has c;ratified by the arrane;ements made by Ul'TIDO to hold 
consultative meetinc;s in 1977 on the 1wrld situation of the leather and leather­
products industry and the vec;etable oils industry, in accordance vith the 
decisions of the second General Conference. Those consultations betHeen developed 
and developinc; countries, on the one hand, and among developing countries themselves, 
on the other hand, should facilitate the achievement of the under-developed 
countries' industrialization goals. 

21. It was by such efforts that the target embodied in the Lina Declaration and 
Plan of Action of raisinc; the developing countries 1 share of Horld industrial 
production to 25 per cent by the year 2000, could be expected to be achieved. Such 
a requirement Has part of the phenomenon of the speeding up of history. Since the 
end of the Second \Jorld Har many peoples had acceded to independence and by the 
end of' the century not a single State 1vould be politic ally ctepenclent on another. 
Hm<Tever, c;eneralized independence was not sufficient in itself. It had to become 
possible to complement it by a generalized industrial revolution. 

! ... 



A/C,2/32/SR.28 
English 
Page 6 

22. !·1r. BOTERO (Colombia) sdd that~ for the reasons his delegation had explained 
during the general debate (A/C.2/32/SR. 7), it had reservations concerning 
paragraphs 27, 49 and 123 of the report of the Industrial Development Board 
(A/32/16), dealing with prefErential treatment for the least developed countries. 

23. 'iiJith regard to the setting up of a technological information network, his 
country was grateful to UNIDO for having dispatched a mission to assess its 
information needs and study the role that the network might play in Colombia. That 
rr~ssion had aroused great interest in the government departments concerned. 

24. In that connexion ~ the industrial and technological information bank could 
contribute to the efficacy of the netw·ork in co-ordination with the information 
syster:JS of other United Naticns bodies. In his delegation 1 s view, a technological 
data collection system shoulc. take account of at least the following factors: 
identification of the requirements to be met~ co-ordination of the information 
systems of all the organizations~ and data evaluation. However, the last element 
did not seem to have receivec sufficient attention from the U~IDO secretariat and 
the proposed information bank could contribute to that evaluation function. 

25. Mr. DE!VliN (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that the United 
1-,atio:r:.s Industrial Developnent Organization was called upon to play a primary role 
in the establishment of just and mutually advantageous co-operation among States in 
industrial matters. Such co~operation was enormously important for improving and 
restructuring international economic relations. The old international economic 
order, dating from the era of imperialism and colonialism, was no longer compatible 
with the situation prevailing in most countries. That disparity was all the more 
striking in that detente had created the necessary conditions for solving 
international economic problems in the interests of all mankind. 

26. UNIDO was playing a useful role in that process because it helped the 
developing countries to fight for their economic and social progress and to overcome 
their economic backwardness. Constructive joint action by the socialist and 
developing countries had led to a realization that national industrial development 
was essential for the economic independence of States, for raising levels of living 
and for the restructuring of international economic relations. 

27. However, UNIDO had not exhausted all the means of action available to it. It 
should endeavour to give rrDre help to developing countries struggling to liberate 
themselves from exploitation JY foreign capital and transnational corporations. It 
could do a great deal to advaJce industrial development, particularly to develop 
integrated national industry, strengthen the public and co-operative sectors, 
introduce scientific planning, ensure the participation of the people in 
industrialization and promote co-operation among developing countries. It should 
also give greater importance c;o the social aspects of industrialization, because 
unless industrialization was :tccompanied by economic and social reforms, it would 
.lead to the exploitation of W•)rkers and to a decline in the level of living. In 
that connexion, UNIDO should take advantage of the experience of countries that had 
managed to develop their econ•Jmies at a steady pace and to avoid unemp.loyment, 
inflation and other adverse f.:tctors. 

I ... 



A/C. 2/32/SR.28 
English 
Page 7 

(~r. Demin, Byelorussian SSR) 

28. UNIDO should, moreover, coc-ordinate all the industrial development activities 
of the United Nations system. It had not yet done so, although the necessary means 
were available to it. It was high time that ill~IDO became the chief executing agency 
for industrial projects. Furthermore, the new constitution should lead to more 
effective co-ordination and reaffirm the universality of illHDO; it should reaffirm 
certain principles enunciated in other documents, such as the connexion between 
peace, security, disarmament and social and economic development, the elinrinatien 
of imperialism, neo-colonialism, apartheid and racial discrimination, and the right 
to nationalization and to sovereignty over natural resources. The constitution 
should also reaffirm the principle that the United Nations Industrial Development 
Fund was to be financed by voluntary contributions. 

29. The activities of liDTIDO should be guided chiefly by the need to strengthen the 
industrialization of developing countries as a means of ensuring their independence 
and helping them to overcome their economic backwardness. That goal would not be 
achieved if it continued to execute programmes that increased the dependence of 
those countries on the capitalist economies. Moreover, it should be noted that 
industrial projects represented a very small part of the United Nations system's 
technical assistance. UNIDO should improve the quality of its research and the 
preparation of development programmes and projects. 

30. His delegation sympathized with the developing countries 1 desire for 
industrialization. Its own experience since the 1917 revolution demonstrated the 
importance of that process. Before 1917 his country had been extremely backward 
from the economic point of view, but thanks to the introduction of a socialist 
system and to a range of social and economic reforms, it had been able to expend 
its productive forces and its industrial production considerably. I1oreover, it was 
exporting to 90 countries, including a large number of developing countries. His 
country's economy had made further progress in 1977, so that it had been able to 
meet the commitments it had undertaken in connexion with the celebration of the 
sixtieth anniversary of the October Revolution. 

31. In order to accelerate their industrial development, the developing countries 
should rely primarily on their own resources, but they should also receive external 
economic assistance, provided it was compatible with their national development 
objectives. The legitimate demands of the developing countries with regard to 
increasing the transfer of real resources, reducing the profits made by capitalist 
economies and reducing expenditure on arms, should be satisfi eeL 

32. Like other \Tnited Nations agencies, UNIDO sb_}uld endeavour to bring about the 
restructuring of international economic relations on a democratic basis and in the 
interest of all peoples, thereby strengthening international peace and security. 

33. Mr. SATTAR (Pakistan) said that UNIDO deserved to be complimented on its 
expeditious arrangements for the first consultation meetings on iron and steel 
industries and fertilizers and on its preparations for other similar meetings ln 
two priority sectors, the leather and vegetable oil industries. Those 

I ... 



A/C.2/32/SR.28 
English 
Page 8 

(~~. Sattar, Pakistan) 

consultations would undoubt;; be useful, but they would have to be differently 
orientated if more substantial results were to be achieved. In particular, more 
attention should be given t) problems of financing new industries in developing 
countries, investment guara1tees, training of personnel and the redeployment of 
industry. 

34. Research, studies, seminars and consultations could not be an end in 
themselves. The time had c )IDe for ill'UDO to shift its energies mainly to concrete, 
action-oriented prograw.mes that 1-Tere directly related to the establishment, 
expansion and improvement of industries in the developing countries. 

The Industrial Develop:nent Board was apparently having some difficulty in 
increasing its operational a.cti vi ties because of a lack of resources and a lack of 
authority. 

36. \-lith regard to financi :d resources, it was to be hoped that the United Nations 
Industrial Development Fund would enable illUDO to participate in the 
implementation of the Decla::"ation and the Programme of Action on the Establishment 
of a ?T ew International Economic Order and of General Assembly resolution 3362 (S-VII\ 
The Fund should also enable illHDO to irnplement the recommendations of the Ad Hoc 
Committee on a Long-Range s-~rategy for UNIDO, to intensify its activities relating 
to the developrrent end tran~;fer of technology, to implement field projects and to 
promote co-operation among developing countries and between the latter and the 
indu:3 tri ali zed countries , 

37. The Industrial Developnent Fund would obviously have to have the necessary 
reso·.1rces if 1-ras to carr~r out that ambitious progrannne. The Paris Conference on 
International Economic Co-operation had unanimously agreed that a desirable level 
of funding would be $50 miL.ion a year. Although not very large when one considered 
how many developing countries required illUDO assistance, that sum would nevertheless 
represent a substantial improvement over the existing situation. It was therefore 
to be hoped that numerous countries, and particularly those which had participated 
in the Paris Conference, would announce pledges at the first Pledging Conference for 
the Fund, which was to be held very soon. 

38. Although illUDO must have sufficient financial resources if it was to 
cont:::-ibute to the industria_.ization of the developing countries, it was equally 
impo::-tant for it to be strengthened institutionally, since responsibility went hand 
in hand with authority. Prc>mpt action must therefore be taken to convert Ul\TIDO into 
a specialized agency. te the progress that had been made, the illiJIDO 
Constitution Cormrittee had l,een unable, during the five sessions had already held, 
to resolve all the outstanding questions, with the result that the Industrial 
Development Board had recomnended the convening of a plenipotentiary conference 
during the second half of 1S'77. The Economic and Social Council, however, feeling 
that the General Assembly slould first undertake consideration of the outstanding 
prob1ems, had recommended tl.at the conference be postponed until the early part of 
1978. 'l'he conversion of ffi\TJDO lnto a specialized agency was too important a 

I ... 



A/C.2/32/SR.28 
English 
Page 9 

(Mr. Sattar, Pakistan) 

decision to be postponed, and it was therefore to be hoped that the Committee and 
the General Assembly would be able to take decisions which would impel UNIDO in the 
right direction. 

39. The regular UNIDO budget was already about $25 rnllion a year. The 
industrialized countries, no less than the developing countries, had a stake in the 
purposeful use of their obligatory contributions and in enhancing UNIDO' s capacity 
to serve its members. 

40. !11r. GERBASI (Venezuela) noted with satisfaction that substantial progress had 
been made at the eleventh session of the Industrial Development Board in giving 
effect to the principles of the Lima Declaration and Plan of Action. The 
continuation of that positive trend would call for a broad process of international 
co-operation, in which the industrialized countries must demonstrate the political 
will to take comprehensive action. 

41. The General Assembly must take a decision at its thirty-second session on 
convening a plenipotentiary conference to adopt a constitution converting UNIDO into 
a specialized agency. That conversion would help to strengthen the Organization 1 s 
co-ordinating role, and for that purpose UNIDO would have to enter into closer 
co-operation with other United Nations bodies, particularly Ui\"ICTAD. The fact that 
there were still some unresolved questions regarding the draft constitution must not 
be used as a pretext for postponing the convening of the conference; on the 
contrary, it was at the plenipotentiary level that disagreements could most easily 
be reduced, and his delegation therefore felt that a decision should be taken to 
convene the conference early in 1978, to organize its work in detailed fashion and 
to provide for the conference to be of sufficient duration. 

42. He was pleased that at its eleventh session the Industrial Development Board 
had taken up the question of the redeployment of industries from developed to 
developing countries. Such redeployment had been taking place for several years, 
but no governmental machinery had been set up for obtaining the greatest possible 
benefit from that process for the world economy, particularly the economies of the 
host countries, i.e. the developing countries. However, the latter had not taken a 
passive attitude. The countries of the Andean Pact, for example, had adopted rules 
designed to ensure that the process of industrial redeployment was in keeping, to 
the greatest possible extent, with the nature of their economies and of their 
development priorities. 

43. His delegation was convinced, however, that the redeployment of industries must 
reflect a government policy worked out between the countries of origin and the 
recipient count1ies. To that end, consideration of the matter in UNIDO should be 
closely linked with the system of consultations set up at the government level with 
a view to working towards the objective set in the Lima Declaration and Plan of 
Action, i.e., to ensure that the developing countries accounted for 25 per cent of 
vrorld industrial production by the year 2000. 

I ... 



A/C .2'/32/SR .28 
English 
Page 10 

(Mr. Gerbasi, Venezue~-~) 

44. His delegation support.>;; ·;he decisions adopted at the eleventh session of the 
Indm:trial Development Board, particularly those relating to international 
co-operation in the matter cf the transfer of technology; it wished to express warm 
appreciation to the Indian Government for its offer to act as host to the Third 
General Conference of UNIDO. 

45. l.Vlr. MUNGAI (Kenya) said that the reports submitted to the Committee attested to 
the tremendous effort which the Executive Director of ill'iJIDO and his staff had made 
to ensure the implementation of the decisions and recommendations of the Second 
General Conference of UNIDO and of those recommendations of the seventh special 
session of the General Assenbly which were relevant to industrial development; 
those efforts were particulerly commendable when one considered the budgetary and 
administrative constraints ~nder which the ill~IDO secretariat had to operate. 

46. Huch had been said during the general debate about the major trade and monetary 
problems facing the developing countries. In fact, those countries' problems 
covered a much wider spectr~m, especially when the process of development was viewed 
in its totality. His own ccuntry, for example, was trying to build a more balanced 
economy, and industrial procuction was one of the key objectives of its development 
strategy. 

47. His Government had therefore followed with special interest the efforts of the 
Executive Director of UNIDO and of the Industrial Development Board to attain one 
of the main targets of the Lima Conference, namely to increase the developing 
countries' share in world irdustrial output from 7 per cent to at least 25 per cent 
by the year 2000 . 

48. 'I'he results of the fir::t consultation meetings on the iron and steel industry 
and i~he fertilizer industry were satisfactory, and it was to be hoped that the 
organization of similar meetings on other industrial sectors would lead to specific 
inve~;tment decisions by the developed countries. In that connexion, the proposal 
to include in the consultations the discussion of such issues as finance, 
inve~;tment guarantees and tl.e training of industrial manpower was very welcome since 
it would go a lone; way towards broadening and strengthening that vital form of 
inte:mational industrial co-·operation. Since agriculture constituted the backbone 
of the economy of most developing countries, it ·would, however, be desirable for as 
many agro-based industries ~,s possible to be included in the next series of 
consultation meetings. 

49. Hi th regard to the redE~ployment of industries to the developing countries, his 
Government awaited with great anticipation the study called for in General Assembly 
resolution 31/163 on identi:'ication of the specific industries and sectors of 
indu:3tries which would be anenable to accelerated redeployment to developing 
countries in the context of section IV, paragraph 2, of General Assembly resolution 
3362 (S~VII). 

50. His delegation was gratified at the efforts which UHIDO had been devoting to 
the question of the transfer of technology. The developing countries urgently 

I . .. 



A/C.2/32/SR.28 
English 
Page 11 

(Mr. Mungai. Kenya) 

needed industrial technology that was adapted to their special situations and that 
struck a balance between considerations of production efficiency, on the one hand, 
and of employment generation, on the other hand. The adoption of the co-operative 
programme of action on appropriate industrial technology and the establishment, as 
a pilot project, of an industrial and technological information bank represented two 
major UNIDO initiatives in that regard. 

51. vlith regard to the strengthening of UHIDO's operational activities, it was 
disturoing to note that the proposed programme budget for 1978-1979 showed a 
disequilibrium in that the funds allocated for administration and industrial 
studies were considerably hig~er than those allocated for operational activities. 
\-lith particular reference to the industrial development field advisers programme, 
his delegation was inclined to favour the suggestion that resources should be 
reallocated within the regular budget in order to finance some adviser posts in 
addition to those already being financed by UNDP. How·ever, his delegation reserved 
its position pending submission of the Executive Director's report on his 
consultations with the Administrator of UNDP. 

52. The fact that ill~IDO's failure to expand its operational activities was 
largely due to financial difficulties provided further evidence of the need for the 
immediate transformation of UNIDO into a specialized agency so that it would no 
longer be dependent on factors over which it had no control. 

53. It was therefore to be hoped that the plenipotentiary Conference to be 
convened at the beginning of 1978 would be able to settle all outstanding questions 
and that a constitution could be adopted for UNIDO, so that it could perform its 
task more effectively. 

54. In the meantime his delegation would appeal to all Member States to contribute 
generously to the United Nations Industrial Development Fund at the forthcoming 
pledging conference. 

55. Mr. KOLEV (Bulgaria) said that industrialization was an essential factor in the 
development of the national economy, particularly in the case of the newly 
developing countries, and a guarantee of the political and economic independence of 
each State. For that reason, after the October Revolution the young Soviet State 
had concentrated on electrification and industrialization? which had enabled it to 
become a highly industrialized country with an enormous economic, scientific and 
technological potential. 

56. In a very short time, the People's Republic of Bulgaria had managed to overcome 
the economic under-development inherited from foreign domination, and had set 
itself the task of building an advanced socialist society. It therefore fully 
understood the problems that were now confronting the developing countries the 
fields of economic development, and particularly industrial development. The 
progress which it had made in that respect could be judged from the fact that 
industry had accounted for 82 per cent of the gross national product in 1975, as 
compared with only 20 per cent in 1944. On the basis of its own experience an~ its 

I . .. 



A/C .2/ .28 
.ti;nglish 

12 

(llr. X:olev, Bulgaria) 

policy of sapport and assistance for the developing countries in their struggle 
for al and economic independence 9 the 1 s Republic of attached 
great i111portance to U11JIDO s activities as a co-ordinator and ca·~alysc in the field 
of international industrial co-operation within the United i1Tations It 
believed that industriali::ation 1-ms one of the basic elements in the new 
international economic order. 

57. His delegation was to note, from the of the 
Board on the 1rork of its eleventh session~ that Ul\fi"CO v s efforts to 

become a forum for conduc~;ing international and consultations on 
definite issues connected vi th international in the field of industrial 
development had had good :·esults. 

5o. The approach adopted by the UNI.CO secretariat to the restructuring process, 
vith a vie\v to transforming LJ1JIDO into a nore efficient institution, had his 

's support. It "~JOuld hardly be advisable, hmv-ever, to carry out any 
further restructuring of lJl'TIDO crhile it uas still in the process of a 
specialized agency. It m·1st of all implement the immediate tasks confronting 

assistan<::e to developing countries and strengthening ernational 
in the field of industrial development. In that connexion his 

assessed posit~ vely the joint research done by illTIDO on 
ion in the field of industrial development and hoped that, in 

ional 
that 1mrk, 

account would be tal(en of the experience of all ancl countries, 
the of the cow1tries of the Council for l•lutual Economic Ass 

59. 'I'he activities of th<~ International Centre for Industrial Research corresponded, 
in , to the tasks :3et in the Lima Declaration and Plan of Action. However, 
efforts should be made to elaborate a more realistic for scientific research, 
which would be practicall:r orientated and consistent, and make the most of the 

financial and libour resources of the Centre. 

60. His suppo ~ted the activities carried out 
co-ordination among the competent international and 
providing the developing ~ountries ;;.ri th the scientific and 
necessary to strenc;then t:1eir industrial and technological 

by UIUDO to promote 
organs vri th a view to 

technical information 
potential. UNIDO could 

Tqations Conference on 
for the United 

thus take an active part i_n tl1e for the 
Science and 'rechnology for and in the 

Conference on Tee mical Co·-operation among Countries. 

1 s Tiepubli ~ of had al'.mys encleavoured to maintain act 
with u~aDO, md that co-operation had been at an accelerated 

rate in recent years. For ,, as a follm.;-up to the meetings held at Sofia in 
1975 and , a third ro~nd~table meetin13 at the erial level voulcl tal\e 
place in the autumn of 19 78 and ".-muld be devoted to of industrial 

anong the so ~ialist and developing countries. rurthermore, the firs<~ 
conference Jf UHIDO national committees had been held at Sofia in 
In connexio 1 1vi th that co~operation, mention should also be made of 

the joint prograJJLme for i co--o:9eration in the field of the metal-· 
proces , the 2laboration of a 1Jrograrr~e in the field of industrial 

I .... 



A/C.2/32/SR.28 
English 
Page 13 

(Mr. IColev, Bulgaria) 

co-operatives, which should become operational by the end of the current year and 
the joint centre for co-operation, established by the Bulgarian Government and the 
U:NIDO secretariat with a view to improving the organization, co-ordination and 
planning of their co-operation. 

62. lvithin the scope of its possibilities, the People 1 s Republic of Bulgaria was 
also helping a number of developing countries to build up their national industry, 
by providing them with technology, particularly for the execution of industrial 
and agricultural products, by increasing its imports of industrial goods from the 
developing countries, by sending Bulgarian specialists to such countries and by 
training hundreds of young people from developing countries in Bulgaria. 

63. The Bulgarian Government continued to attach primary importance to the 
accelerated development of Bulr;arian industry, as could be seen from the seventh 
five-year plan, one of whose objectives was to satisfy the material and cultural 
needs of the people to an even greater degree by ensuring dynamic and balanced 
development of the national economy through rapidly increasing labour productivity, 
efficiency and quality. In order to achieve that aim, the Government was also 
planning to expand and intensify the process of integration within the framework 
of the Council for Mutual Economic Assistance and, first and foremost, to expand 
co-operation with the Soviet Union and the other socialist countries. 

64. However, the success of the activities undertaken by all countries in the 
field of economic development would depend mainly on the state of the international 
political situation and on the establishment of lasting international peace and 
security. rl'he People's Republic of Bulgaria had al>vays been in favour of expanding 
ar"d deepening the process of detente, of halting the armaments race and of 
disarmament. It therefore strongly supported the nevr Soviet initiative taken at 
the present session of the General Assembly, which represented a new contribution 
to the establishment of lasting peace in the vrorld. 

65. In conclusion, he reiterated his conviction that UNIDO could and should find 
its place in the process of reconstruction of international relations as a whole, 
including international economic relations. 

66. Mr. HERRERA VEGAS (Argentina) said that, judging from the experimental phase, 
the system of consultations devised with a view to increasing the participation of 
the developing countries in world industrial production seemed to be a very useful 
vrorking tool. His delegation would follow with keen interest the preparations for 
the forthcoming consultation meetings for the leather and leather products industry, 
and vegetable oils and fats industry. That mechanism, nnd particularly the sectoral 
consultations which had already started, and the regional consultations that vrould 
take place in the future, would enable a pragmatic approach to be taken. 

67. On the other hand, consultations at the global level, particularly concerning 
financing, investment guarantees and industrial manpmrer training, should be 
approached with circumspection, as the danger of duplication of the work of other 
United Nations agencies was a very real one. 

I . .. 



A/C.2/32/SR.2u 
English 
Page 14 
(Hr. Herrera Vegas, Argentina) 

68. '1'0 ensure that the ccnsultations vrere held on a practical levc:., 
had sent to tlle consultatjon meetings delegations composed both of fsovernme:::tt 
reiJresentatives and repre::;entatives of the private S8Ctor. In any C8$e, the 
results of the consultaticns would ultimately be considered by the Industrial 
Development Board, which consisted of representatives of Governments. 

69. The notion of redeplcyment of industries lent itself to varying 
interpretations, a.tid should therefore be clarified so as to provide guidance for 
the ~xecutive Director in preparing the report that he would submit to the General 
Assembly at its thirty-third session. He deployment would be beneficial to the 
entire international comm1.-nity, and not merely to the developing coill1tries, if it 
was vie,,red as a reflection of government policy and the outcome of a sincere vrill 
to help to distribute ind1..:strial capacity in accordance vri th the principles of 
the new international economic order. 

70. His delegation felt that the United Nations Industrial Development Fund 1ras a 
useful means of attaining the objectives set at Lima, and it vras therefore pleased 
to note that a target of 50 million had been set as the desirable level for the 
Fund, It also noted vli th satisfaction that the industrial and technological 
information bank 1muld bec8me operational through a JJilot project, so that there 
1ras reason to hope for a g:)od outco:rrre for the systen of consultations and, in 

, for the problem of the trans fer of technology, as the banl\: vlOuld provide 
supporting services for th:)Se t-vm rnechanisr.1s. 

71. Argentina, 14hich vas k:eenly interested in the question of technical 
co-ooperation anont; developing countries, vrelcorned the activities that were being 
carried out by UlHDO to pr)rnote tlmt type of co-operation. It '1-TaS sure that by 
i::onplementine; resolution 47 (XI) on international co~operation in the transfer of 
technology, UNIDO vmuld ma:\:e a valuable contribution to the success of the 
Conference on Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries, to be held at 
Buenos Aires in 1978. 

72. Lastly, with regard t) the conversion of UlUDO into a specialized agency, his 
delegation vras a1.:rare of th·:: efforts that had been Dade to draw up a constitution 
for UiUDO, but pointed out that there must be a clear political 1-rill on the part of 
all concerned to arrive at an agreement, so that the Conference of 
Plenipotentiaries could ac·~omplish its tasl;:. There Has reason to fear that any 
further delay in that area might seriously jeopardize UlTIDOvs capacity to discharge 
its responsibilities tmra~ds the develooing countries. It should be borne in mind 
that industrialization was the corner-stone of develo:;:n:ent. 

73. iir. ~·JOLTE (Austria) noted with satisfaction the.t the Committee to Draw Un a 
Constitution for Ul'JIDO as a zed Agency had made good progress vrith its 
1mrl-;_; it therefore seer,;ed necessary to proceed to the final stage. His delegation 
welcomed the convening of a conference of plenipotentiaries early in 1973 and felt 
that the results obtained ':hould serve as the basis for a solution accepted by e.ll 
the groups concerned. 

I ... 



A/C .2/ 32/SB . 23 
mglish 
Pace 15 

( ~r . Kolte, Aust ria) 

74 . The establishment of a system of consultations vras likeHise aimed at 
r eorienting the work of UiHDO so as t o make it more responsive to the current and 
future r equirements of i nternational co- operation . The initial series of 
consultations shm·red the advantage of that method, which made it possible to 
present a broad and coherent picture of the sectors under study vrhich was in turn 
very useful both to industry and to Governments. An initial detai led evaluation of 
the consultations on the basis of the experience acquired would be one of the 
primary tasks of the Third General Conference . His delee;ation had no difficulty i n 
joining the consensus on pursuing the consultations because it felt that it vould 
be useful to organize an additional series of consultations so as to be able to 
evaluate them in a well-informed manner . 

75 . A central theme of UIIJIOO' s worl( was t he t ransfer of i ndust rial t echnology . In 
that connexion the Board, at its eleventh session, had adopte d r esolution 47 
defining UIUDO' s role in that sector, established an industrial and technological 
information bank and l aunched a co-operat i ve progr amme of action relating to 
industrial techology. Austria, convinced of the need for a system of industrial 
devel opment field advisers, lent assistance to UHIOO, particularly within the 
lfflDP Governing Council, with a view to drawing closer to t he established goal. It 
had d~cided to finance the appointment of an industri al development field adviser . 

76 . It was gratifYing to note that the Industrial Development Boar d had authorized 
the Exeuct ive Director to convene the fi r st Pledging Conference i n 1977 and that i t 
had also suggested approxi mately ~;50 million as a desirabl e amount for the United 
t~ations Industri al Devel opment Fund. UNIDO was faced ,.,ith large - scale proj ects 
Hhich required urgent action , and therefore must be given the means l!hich >Tould 
enable it to act. Austria contributed annually to UlHDO 's ;.rork - in 1977 its 
contribut i on had amounted to :~1 50 ,000 - and it intended t o continue t hat policy 
in conne xion with the new Fund. Furthermore, s eminar s and training progranunes 
were organized jointly by ~liDO and Austria. 

77 . As to the preparation of t he Third General Conference of U!!IDO , his delegat ion 
agreed that the joint study on international co-operation in the industrial f i eld 
could be an i mportant contribution to the deliberations of the Conference . 
Furthermore , it was convinced that in vi ew of its mandate and the s pec ialized 
knowledge available to it, UNIDO woul d play a very ac tive role in the pr eparat i on 
for, and the work of, the Confer ence on Science and Technology fo r Development. 

78 . Through the expansion which it had undergone since its establishment and the 
instruments at its disposal, especially the system of cons ultations, UlUIXJ had 
laid t he groundHork which \-TOuld enable it to fulfil its mandate and contribute to 
the establishment of a nevr international economic order . 

79 . t4r . BERG (Nonray) observed that after a series of debates in many foru.rns to 
define the questions i nvol ved, the international community had ~mbarked upon the 
process of impl ementing tbe decisions of the Lima Conference and of t he s eventh 
special session of the General Assembly . 

I . . . 



A/C.2/32/SR.28 
English 
Page 16 

(Hr. Berg, Norway) 

80. His Government had already taken a number of steps which it hoped would help 
the developing countries to increase their share in total industrial production 
and to gain easier access t~ the markets of the industrialized countries. 
Specifically, it had extended the system of generalized tariff preferences by 
including additional products and by exempting all the products of the least 
developed countries from all duties. It had also established an advisory agency 
w·hich provided practical guidance to exporters from developing countries wishing 
to enter the i'Jorwegian mark::t. 

81. Nevertheless, the acti)n of a single country, especially a small one lilce 
Norway, was limited, and co1certed action had to be taken by the developed 
countries to ensure that th:: fruits of such a national restructuring process 
really benefited the develo~ing countries. 

82. In light of the concer1 to see that UNI:CO was able to continue to carry out 
its taslc efficiently, and e:>pecially to implement the Lima Declaration and Plan of 
Action, it was to be hoped that all parties vould do their utmost to agree on a 
new constitution for UIHDO :ts a specialized agency. l'Tew delays should be avoided 
in order to ensure the best preparation for the Third General Conference. 

83. His Government -vrished to congratulate the UIHDO secretariat on the vray in 
which it had organized the first two series of consultations. It was satisfied 
with the results of those t·vo meetings, the objectives of which seemed realistic. 
The Norw·egian delegation at those consultations had been composed of 
representatives of Governme;1t, industry and labour. As to the status of those 
consultations, he felt that a pragmatic approach to the problem should be adopted, 
particularly during the exP'~rimental phase. He stressed the usefulness of the 
consultations, vhich made possible a free exchange of information between industry, 
labour and consumers, and a·~tached particular importance to the consultations on 
agro-based industries -vrhich would take place in 1978 and 1979. 

84. His delegation thanked the Indian Government for its offer to host the Third 
UNitO General Conference in 1979. That Conference would make it possible to 
evaluate the implementation of the Lima Declaration and Plan of Action and to 
analyse possibilities and p:~iori ties for action on the basis of acquired experience. 
The results of the Conferen(!e 1vould also be very useful in the elaboration of the 
new development strategy. 

85. Mr. VAN 'I'OOREN (Nether:.ands) stressed the importance of the system of 
consultations which the Industrial Development Board was trying to develop and 
which could help to promote investments in the developing countries. During the 
first two consultation meet:.ngs on iron and steel and on fertilizers, his delegation 
had included representati vel; of both employers and labour unions. That approach 
seemed necessary when real restructuring of productive capacities was intended. 
Such restructuring would succeed only if appropriate redeployment policies were 
developed and implemented 1'lith the participation and co-operation of all involved. 

86. In order to organize f1~ure consultation meetings, it would be desirable to 

I . .. 



start by de clear criteria for the selection of the sectors l·rith \·Tbich the 
consultations should deal. Furthermore, it was the tc>Bk of the General Ass 
to give the Board guidelines in that connexion. It l·rould be appropriate, for 
exarnple, to choose industries w'hich coulcl be established in rural areas, \vhich vrere 
viable for small-scale production and vJere based on the use of local resources 
local manpower. Beyond that, those industries should promote E:tass narticipation 
in the development process and thus contribute to basic needs. 
the sectors selected should be important to as a number of developing countri.::s 
as possible. 

87. As to the transfer of technology, his delegation vrelcomecl resolution 47 (XI), 
Yihich defined Ul\TIDO 's role in that field. He stressed that UNIDO nust co-operate 
closely with other relevant organizations of the United .i:re.tions syste:-n. Similarly, 
the industrial and tec!:mological information bank must be as one of the 
components of an international netwc.rk for the exchanc;e of t cal inform.ation 
and must operate in close co-operation vrith other institutions and organizations, 
especially at the regional level. 

ifo.ile recogni that it 1vas necessary to s UNIDO 1 s onerational 
activities, his delegation felt that it 1·ras better to treat that n:atter vi thin the 
over-all context of the onal activities of the United !lations system. 

89. For that very reason his Government vroulc1 refrain from contributing to the 
United Nations Industrial Development Fund. It wanted all the resources vrhich it 
provided for multilateral technical assistance to be channelled through mmP so as 
to be sure that the available resources uould be distributed to the recipient 
countries according to an objective system and that the implementation of industrial 
projects would be part of the entire national pro.'Sramrue of each country. 

At its twenty~ fourth session, the UlJDP Governing Council h::td approved a 
proposal to increase the number of industrial development field advisers to 36, on 
the understanding that the six additional for would be allocated to the 
least develofed countries. Hovever, the UJ.JDP Governing Council, be fore takin~ any 
further action on the matter, had insisted on the preparation of a study on 
sectoral support to Ui'IDP resident representatives 'lvhich \WUld also deal vri th 
recourse to alternative methods of industrial field adviser 
posts. His delegation lool~ed foruard to that report. 

rose at 




